
` 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

 
DATE & TIME:  Friday, May 29, 2015, 8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
       
LOCATION:   City of El Cerrito, Council Chambers 
                                        10890 San Pablo Avenue (at Manila Ave) 

               El Cerrito, California (Accessible by AC Transit #72, #72M and #72R) 

 

 
1. Call to Order and Self-Introductions – Chair Sherry McCoy 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.  Please fill out a speaker card and hand it to staff. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3. Minutes of April 24, 2015 Board Meeting.  (Attachment; Recommended Action: 

APPROVE) 
 
4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities.  (Attachment; Recommended Action: 

RECEIVE) 
 
5. Financial Reports for April 2015.  The reports show the Agency’s revenues and 

expenses for April 2015.  (Attachment; Recommended Action: RECEIVE) 
 
6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000.  None  (Information Only) 

 
7. FY 15-16 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation for Seniors 

and People with Disabilities.  The annual allocation of Measure J’s Program 20b 
funds Additional Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities is available 
to the five paratransit operators as outlined in the Measure J Expenditure Plan.  
The operators include the East Bay Paratransit Consortium (EBPC), WestCAT, and 
the cities of Richmond, San Pablo and El Cerrito.  These funds can be used for 
existing and/or enhanced senior and disabled services.  The Paratransit 
Coordinating Committee (PCC) recently reviewed the claims and had no comments.  
Claim details are attached. (Attachments; Recommended Action:  APPROVE).   

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

A-1



REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

8. Draft Fiscal Year 2016 Work Program, Budget and Dues.  The proposed work 
program for Fiscal Year 2016 was developed with input from the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC).  The draft budget is divided into four different funds, based upon 
distinct revenue sources.  The dues for next year are proposed to be the same as the 
dues for the current year, and are lower than those in place from Fiscal Years 2008 to 
2012.  Staff recommends approval of these documents for circulation and review by 
the member agencies, with a goal of final Board adoption at the June meeting.  (John 
Nemeth – WCCTAC Staff; Attachments; Recommended Action: APPROVE documents 
for circulation and review by the member agencies). 

 
9. Results of Public Polling Conducted from February to April 2015.  The WCCTAC 

Board directed EMC Research Consultants to conduct public opinion research with 
residents of West Contra Costa County on transportation issues.  The work was 
approved by the Board in the summer of 2014, with a questionnaire finalized in 
December, 2014.  The polling work was conducted from February to April 2015.  Staff 
from EMC Research will provide an overview of this research and its conclusions. 
(Alex Evans-EMC Research Consultants; Attachment; Information Only)   

 
10. Status Report on Central Avenue and San Pablo Dam Road Interchange Projects.  At 

the April 24, 2015 meeting, the WCCTAC Board requested an update on the I-
80/Central Avenue interchange project.  Staff agreed that an update would be timely 
given plans by CCTA to develop a Transportation Expenditure Plan in the upcoming 
year.  The Board meeting will include an overview and a status report on both the     
I-80/Central Avenue and the I-80/San Pablo Dam Road interchange projects. (Hisham 
Noeimi and Ivan Ramirez-CCTA staff; Attachment; Information Only)   

 
  STANDING ITEMS 

 
11.  General Information Items. 

a. Letter to CCTA Executive Director with April 24, 2015 Summary of Board  
               Actions 

b. Acronym List 
 
12.  Board and Staff Comments. 

a.    Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234     
   Requirement), and Announcements 

b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Abelson & Butt) 
c. Executive Director’s Report 

 
13.  Other Business. 

 
14.  Adjourn.   Next meeting is: June 26, 2015 @ 8:00 a.m. 

          El Cerrito City Hall Council Chambers, located at                                                                                   
0                             10890 San Pablo Avenue, El Cerrito                                                                

 

A-2



  
 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to  
 participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the agenda and/or agenda 

packet materials in an alternative format, please contact Valerie Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior 
to the meeting. 

 If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, please 
call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make arrangements. 

 Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed at 
WCCTAC’s offices. 

 Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be attendees 
susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on silent mode during 
the meeting. 

 A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 

A-3





West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes:  April 24, 2015 
 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Sherry McCoy, Chair (Hercules); Janet Abelson, Vice-Chair (El Cerrito); 
Tom Butt, (Richmond); Gayle McLaughlin (Richmond); Roy Swearingen (Pinole); Aleida 
Andrino-Chavez (WestCat); Cecilia Valdez (San Pablo); Zakhary Mallett (BART); John Gioia 
(County). 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Valerie Jenkins, Leah Greenblat, Ben Reyes 
(legal counsel) 
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order:  8:03 AM 
 
Public Comment: Rita Xavier (San Pablo Planning Commission) addressed the Board and 
suggested that there be a 72R AC Transit bus stop at either El Cerrito City Hall or the El 
Cerrito Police Department. 
 
Consent Calendar: Motion by Director Mallett to approve consent calendar with the 
directive that WCCTAC staff will update minutes from March 27, 2015 to reflect the actions 
called out in items 3-8.  Seconded by Vice-Chair Abelson.  Unanimously approved.  
 
3. Minutes of March 27, 2015 Board Meeting.    
4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities.   
5. Financial Reports for March 2015.   
6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. 

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item 7 
Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) 
Rollout.   

Information Only 
Ross Chittenden provided an overview of the TEP 
process, milestones and the role of the WCCTAC 
Board in developing an Expenditure Plan for 
possible inclusion in a 2016 ballot measure.  
 

Item 8 
Allocation of Funds for FY15 and FY16 from 
Measure J, Program 21b - Low Income 
Student Buss Pass Program.   

Motion- Director Gioia; Seconded: Director 
Chavez; Approved Unanimously 
Approved CCTA resolution 12-58-G to allocate 
$30,000 to complete the 2014-15 school year 
and to allocate $1,401,000 for FY16 and FY17. 
 

3-1



 
Meeting Adjourned:  10:07 AM 

Item 9 
BART Del Norte Station Modernization 
Project 

Information Only 
Sadie Graham (BART staff) provided an overview 
of BART’s modernization plans to enhance the 
functionality and design of the Del Norte Station.   
 

Item 10 
Bike to Work Day (BTWD) – Update on 
Preparations 

Information only-Update 
Danelle Carey (WCCTAC Staff) shared information 
about the upcoming BTWD on May 14, 2015.  

3-2



 
 

 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE: 

 

May 29, 2015 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities – May 

 

Bike to Work Day 2015 
On May 14th, bike commuters throughtout 
the Bay Area celebrated Bike to Work Day’s 
21st anniversary.  Despite the forecast of 
rain, all fourteen of West County’s energizer 
stations were open to cheer bicyclist on their 
morning and afternoon commutes. The total 
number of energizer station visitors was 
down slightly from 1,390 in 2014 to 1,191 
this year, likely a result of the weather 
forecast.  Commuters collected healthy 
snacks and reusuable commemorative 2015 
Bike to Work Day bags on their routes to 
work.  This event was made possible through 
the cooperation of volunteers, MTC, 
WCCTAC/511 Contra Costa, local 
jurisdictions, and local bicycle coalitions. 
 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) / Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is in the process of updating the 2017 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), which requires an update to the financially constrained  
project list.  Additionally, the new RTP provides an opportunity to add new projects to the 
financially unconstrained “vision” list.  The project list does not include programs, or routine 
maintenance projects.  
 
Because the update of the RTP overlaps with some aspects of the Transportation Expenditure 
Plan (TEP) development process, CCTA has combined these efforts and has asked that the list 
also serve as a draft of desired projects and programs for the potential new ballot measure. 
 
Given the schedule for updating the 2017 RTP and for developing the TEP, CCTA has set a July 
24, 2015 deadline for Regional Transportation Planning Committees like WCCTAC to compile 
and submit their project lists to CCTA.  Members of the WCCTAC TAC called a special meeting in 
the first week of June to provide technical information on potential projects.  A draft list will be 

4-1



 
 

brought to the WCCTAC Ad Hoc Subcommittee on the TEP in early June, shortly after the special 
TAC meeting.  This information will likely be presented to the full WCCTAC Board in both June 
and July.   
 

Richmond Carshare Program 

 
A new carsharing program has been established in Richmond at two locations: City Hall and 
Atchison Village.  This program was funded through an MTC grant with federal CMAQ dollars.  
Two cars have initially been assigned to Atchison Village, a cooperative housing community 
comprised of 450 apartments.  This program gives residents mobility options, and allows them 
to benefit from the use of a private vehicle use without the costs and responsibilities of 
ownership.   
 

West County High Capacity Transit Investment Study 
Parsons Brinckerhoff, the lead consultants for the study, is beginning to submit drafts of some 
early deliverables.  Staff and the consultants have finalized the study’s scope of work, began 
developing a draft public outreach plan, and established draft goals and objectives for the 
study.  The consultant team is currently conducting a review of relevant past and ongoing 
studies.  The study management group (CCTA, local transit operators and WCCTAC staff) will 
review these documents soon, followed by the WCCTAC TAC and the WCCTAC Board.   

4-2



 
 

AC Transit Reaches Out to West County 
The Richmond Cinco De Mayo Feastival, 
held on May 3rd, included numerous 
vendors and service providers with lively 
booths.  AC Transit hosted a booth to 
promote transit in fun way and to inform 
the community on the benefits of the 
Clipper card; especially the Youth Clipper 
card.  WCCTAC Staff is working closely with 
AC Transit staff to reach  school age riders.   
 

Doctor’s Medical Center Closure – Impacts on Fixed Route and Paratransit Service 
WCCTAC has have taken a lead role in facilitating discussions on transportation services for 
patients who were previously served by Doctors Medical Center (DMC) and now receive care 
elsewhere.  WCCTAC staff, the transit operators, and staff from Supervisor Gioia’s office met to 
determine where clients are going for services now that DMC has closed.   
 

The recent addition of Lifelong Urgent 
Care Clinic, which opened in April 2015, 
across the street from the DMC 
campus, has helped absorb walk-in 
non-emergency patients.  The harder 
trips to serve are for patients needing 
procedures and ongoing care such as 
cancer treatments or wound care.  The 
closest hospital for many of these 
patients is the County Hospital in 
Martinez.   
 
The transit operators and local city non-
ADA paratransit operators are seeking 
data on what former DMC patients are 
doing for transportation and then 
determining the best ways to inform 
them of their options.  The 
enhancement of existing, and possible 
addition of new, transportation services 
that link patients directly to Martinez 
and other locations is also being     

  explored.   
 
 
 

The closure of Doctor’s Medical Center (pictured top) led to 
the opening of a new clinic across the street operated by 
Lifelong Medical Care. 

 

4-3



 
 

South Richmond Transportation Connectivity Plan (SRTCP) Draft  
In 2012, the City of Richmond was awarded a Community-Based Transportation Planning Grant 
from Caltrans to develop the South Richmond Transportation Connectivity Plan.  In 
coordination with the South Shoreline Specific Plan, the Connectivity Plan will identify key 
deficiencies in the local and regional transportation network and will include specific 
recommendations to improve multi-modal 
connection between the City's Southern Shoreline 
and Central Richmond neighborhoods, as well as 
adjacent communities including El Cerrito, 
Albany, and Berkeley. 
  
The Draft South Richmond Transportation 
Connectivity Plan (SRTCP) is now available. To 
access the report, please visit the project website 
at www.ci.richmond.ca.us/srtcp.  Copies will also 
be available for review at the Richmond Main 
Library, 325 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond and the 
Planning Division counter located at 450 Civic 
Center Plaza, 2nd Floor, Richmond. 
  
Please send comments on the draft to Lina 
Velasco, Senior Planner by June 1, 2015 via email 
at Lina_Velasco@ci.richmond.ca.us or by mail at 
Planning Division, 450 Civic Center Plaza, 
Richmond, CA 94804.  
 

WestCAT Summer Youth Pass 2015 
The Summer Youth Pass is back.  WestCAT riders, who are 18 years old and under, can purchase 
a wristband for $50 beginning May 15, 2015.  This will allow for unlimited rides on both 
WestCAT and Tri Delta fixed route and express buses all summer long from June 1, 2015 until 
August 31, 2015.  For more information, call (510) 724-3331 or visit www.westcat.org.  

 
STMP payments 
WCCTAC issued STMP funds to BART in the amount of $32,866 for the improvements to the 
intermodal and drop-off area at the Richmond BART Station.   

4-4

http://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/srtcp
mailto:Lina_Velasco@ci.richmond.ca.us
http://www.westcat.org/


City of San Pablo
7700. WCCTAC Operations Division

Account Details

 As of Fiscal 2015 - April

Account

Current

Period

Actuals

Original

Budget

Net

Budget

Adjustments

YTD

Budget

YTD

Actuals

YTD

Variance

Encumbered

Amount

Available

Amount

Available

%

Salary, Benefits, and Insurance

    41000. Salary 20,654 241,780 0 241,780 180,205 61,575 0 61,575 25

    41002. Overtime 33 0 0 0 67 -67 0 -67 0

    41105. Workers Compensation 0 8,668 0 8,668 951 7,717 0 7,717 89

    41200. PERS Retirement 3,101 33,388 0 33,388 30,772 2,616 0 2,616 8

    41310. Medical Insurance 4,167 38,525 0 38,525 40,545 -2,020 0 -2,020 0

    41311. Health Insurance Retirees 0 1,926 0 1,926 2,657 -731 0 -731 0

    41400. Dental Insurance 330 3,853 0 3,853 3,447 406 0 406 11

    41500. Vision Care 0 963 0 963 1,970 -1,007 0 -1,007 0

    41800. LTD Insurance 169 112 0 112 1,499 -1,387 0 -1,387 0

    41900. Medicare 298 3,291 0 3,291 2,336 955 0 955 29

    41903. Employee Assistance Program 0 1,284 0 1,284 19 1,265 0 1,265 99

    41904. Life Insurance 38 401 0 401 358 43 0 43 11

    41911. Liability Insurance 0 3,724 0 3,724 9,506 -5,782 0 -5,782 0

    41912. Unemployment 0 0 0 0 2,728 -2,728 0 -2,728 0

Total Salary, Benefits and Insurance 28,790 337,915 0 337,915 277,060 60,855 0 60,855

Services and Supplies

    43500. Program Costs & Supplies 157 4,500 0 4,500 4,954 -454 0 -454 0

    43501. Postage (156) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

    43520. Copies/Printing/Shipping/Xerox 119 5,000 0 5,000 (53) 5,053 0 5,053 101

    43530. Office Furn & Equip <$5000 (4,030) 15,500 0 15,500 16,635 -1,135 0 -1,135 0

    43600. Professional Services 3,389 76,560 0 76,560 49,398 27,162 0 27,162 35

    43900. Rent/Building 2,152 12,954 0 12,954 14,881 -1,927 0 -1,927 0

    44000. Special Department Expenses 2,813 11,800 0 11,800 11,876 -76 0 -76 0

    44320. Training/Travel Staff 0 4,000 0 4,000 2,081 1,919 0 1,919 48

Total Service and Supplies 4,444 130,314 0 130,314 99,772 30,542 0 30,542

Grand Total 33,234 468,229 0 468,229 376,832 91,397 0 91,397

5-1



City of San Pablo
7720. WCCTAC Operations Division

Account Details

 As of Fiscal 2015 - April

Account

Current

Period

Actuals

Original

Budget

Net

Budget

Adjustments

YTD

Budget

YTD

Actuals

YTD

Variance

Encumbered

Amount

Available

Amount

Available

%

Salary, Benefits, and Insurance

    41000. Salary 16,613 207,373 0 207,373 170,306 37,067 0 37,067 18

    41002. Overtime 133 0 0 0 619 -619 0 -619 0

    41105. Workers Compensation 0 4,936 0 4,936 951 3,985 0 3,985 81

    41200. PERS Retirement 3,392 41,374 0 41,374 34,579 6,795 0 6,795 16

    41310. Medical Insurance 4,693 45,729 0 45,729 51,003 -5,274 0 -5,274 0

    41400. Dental Insurance 411 4,283 0 4,283 4,391 -108 0 -108 0

    41500. Vision Care 0 1,089 0 1,089 0 1,089 0 1,089 100

    41800. LTD Insurance 101 1,016 0 1,016 1,049 -33 0 -33 0

    41900. Medicare 237 2,831 0 2,831 2,415 416 0 416 15

    41903. Employee Assistance Program 0 1,161 0 1,161 29 1,132 0 1,132 97

    41904. Life Insurance 25 436 0 436 261 175 0 175 40

    41911. Liability Insurance 0 3,724 0 3,724 2,058 1,666 0 1,666 45

Total Salary, Benefits and Insurance 25,605 313,952 0 313,952 267,662 46,290 0 46,290

Services and Supplies

    43500. Program Costs & Supplies 0 3,750 0 3,750 2,026 1,724 0 1,724 46

    43502. TDM Postage 0 7,046 0 7,046 656 6,390 0 6,390 91

    43520. Copies/Printing/Shipping/Xerox 119 9,180 0 9,180 2,366 6,814 0 6,814 74

    43600. Professional Services 2,615 57,560 0 57,560 59,960 -2,400 0 -2,400 0

    43900. Rent/Building 2,152 12,954 0 12,954 16,975 -4,021 0 -4,021 0

    44000. Special Department Expenses 689 87,010 0 87,010 42,367 44,643 0 44,643 51

    44320. Training/Travel Staff 151 3,000 0 3,000 2,631 369 0 369 12

Total Services and Supplies 5,726 180,500 0 180,500 126,981 53,519 0 53,519

Grand Total 31,331 494,452 0 494,452 394,644 99,808 0 99,808

5-2



City of San Pablo
7740. WCCTAC Operations Division

Account Details

 As of Fiscal 2015 - April

Account

Current

Period

Actuals

Original

Budget

Net

Budget

Adjustments

YTD

Budget

YTD

Actuals

YTD

Variance

Encumbered

Amount

Available

Amount

Available

%

Salary, Benefits, and Insurance

    41000. Salary 0 2,400 0 2,400 0 2,400 0 2,400 100

Total Salary, Benefits and Insurance 0 2,400 0 2,400 0 2,400 0 2,400

Services and Supplies

    43600. Professional Services 1,814 124,795 0 124,795 31,572 93,223 0 93,223 75

Total Services and Supplies 1,814 124,795 0 124,795 31,572 93,223 0 93,223

Grand Total 1,814 127,195 0 127,195 31,572 95,623 0 95,623

5-3



City of San Pablo
7740. WCCTAC Operations Division

Account Details

 As of Fiscal 2015 - April

Account

Current

Period

Actuals

Original

Budget

Net

Budget

Adjustments

YTD

Budget

YTD

Actuals

YTD

Variance

Encumbered

Amount

Available

Amount

Available

%

Services and Supplies

    43600. Professional Services 0 0 0 0 70,462 -70,462 0 -70,462 0

    44000. Special Department Expenses 0 122,318 0 122,318 0 122,318 0 122,318 100

Total Services and Supplies 0 122,318 0 122,318 70,462 51,856 0 51,856

Grand Total 0 122,318 0 122,318 70,462 51,856 0 51,856

5-4



 
 

 

 

TO: WCCTAC Board DATE: May 29, 2014 

FR: Joanna Pallock, Program Manager 

RE: Approval of FY 15-16 Claims for Measure J Program 20b, Additional 
Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities  

REQUESTED ACTION 

Approve Program 20b funds to West County paratransit operators for services to 
supplement those provided under the Measure J Countywide program (Program 15). 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities, 
provides funding to the five West County paratransit operators (East Bay Paratransit 
Consortium (EBPC), El Cerrito, Richmond, San Pablo, and WestCAT) for services to 
supplement those provided under the Countywide Measure J Program 15.  The 
programming and allocations of funds is handled by CCTA for Program 15, and by WCCTAC 
for Program 20b. The Board already has a set of approved policies to determine Program 
20b apportionment amounts for each operator through FY 15-16.  
 
Today, the Board is being asked to adopt all five 20b recipients’ claims for FY 15-16.  The 
chart below identifies the specific allocation for FY 15-16 by operator.  Also attached to this 
staff report are detailed claims for each operator receiving Measure J Program 20b funds.   
 
The claims have been reviewed by a subcommittee of CCTA’s Paratransit Coordinating 
Council (PCC) and there were no requests for changes.  The city-run, non-ADA paratransit 
services were commended by the subcommittee for their efforts to address growing 
demand from former Doctors Medical Center clients. 
 

OPERATOR FY 16 20B 
ALLOCATION 

SERVICE TOTAL PROGRAM 
BUDGET 

East Bay Paratransit 
Consortium (EBPC) 

$109,241 Continue on site 
evaluations in W. County 

$37,169,358 

WestCAT $82,529 Continue rides to medical 
appointments in Richmond 
and San Pablo 

$1,450,000 

Richmond $236,727 Maintain existing service 
and pay off fund balance 

$1,334,769 

San Pablo $72,104 Add service/drivers $310,048 

El Cerrito $40,395 Acquire a new van $147,683 

 
Attachments:  Measure J Program 15 and 20b Claims. 7-1





7-1



7-2



7-3



7-4



7-5



7-6



7-7



7-8



7-9



7-10



7-11



7-12



7-13



7-14



7-15



7-16



7-17



7-18



7-19



7-20



7-21



7-22



7-23



7-24



7-25



7-26



7-27



7-28



7-29



7-30



7-31



7-32



7-33



7-34



7-35



7-36



7-37



7-38



7-39



7-40



7-41



7-42



7-43



7-44



7-45



7-46



7-47



7-48



7-49



7-50



7-51



7-52



7-53



7-54



7-55



7-56



7-57



7-58



7-59



7-60



 
 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE: 

 

May 29, 2015 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director  

RE: Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Work Program, Budget, and Dues  

REQUESTED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed Fiscal Year 2016 work program, budget and dues 
documents for circulation and review by the member agencies, with a goal of final Board 
adoption at the June meeting. 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 Key Accomplishments 
WCCTAC has a number of successes in Fiscal Year 2015, with some highlights as follows: 

 Developed agreement to secure operating funding for the Richmond Ferry; 

 Launched High Capacity Transit Study and leveraged $700,000 from study partners; 

 Conducted a five-year review of the Student Bus Pass Program and increased recipients; 

 Upgraded the Guaranteed Ride Home Program to allow registration and submittal of 
reimbursement requests online, and accept of app-based and car-share services. 

 Created the West County Mobility Management Group to expand and improve the 
delivery of services for seniors and the disabled; 

 Collected West County-specific polling data on the transportation habits and 
preferences of local residents; 

 Returned Measure J 28b funds to cities as part of a one-time distribution of funds; 

 Coordinated with member cities and CCTA to approve the Operations and Maintenance 
agreements for the I-80 ICM Smart Corridor project; 

 Updated West County Action Plan as part of the Countywide Transportation Plan effort; 

 Provided support to member agencies for Active Transportation Program (ATP) grants; 

 Served on a variety of advisory committees, such as the Rumrill Complete Streets 
Technical Advisory Committee and the Countywide Transportation Plan Task Force; 

 Developed a marketing program with WestCAT to promote the “Pass to Class” program, 
which offered free multi-ride tickets to school-age youth; 

 Completed a new, draft WCCTAC website (to be presented in June); 

 Established a bike rack installation process with a near-term focus on San Pablo Avenue;  

 Hired a new project manager (Leah Greenblat).  WCCTAC now fully staffed; 

 Allocated Measure J program funds for transit service, low income youth bus passes, 
paratransit services, and bike-pedestrian trail maintenance efforts in West County; 

 

8-1



Fiscal Year 2016 Work Program 
The proposed work program was developed with input from the Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC).  In Fiscal Year 2016, some key initiatives will include:  

 Guiding West Contra Costa through the development of a countywide Transportation 
Expenditure Plan (TEP) for a potential 2016 transportation sales tax measure; 

 Managing the High Capacity Transit Investment Study, including coordinating with the 
consultant team, Study Management Group, WCCTAC TAC, and Board;   

 Managing issues that arise from the start-up of the I-80 ICM Project; 

 Evaluating the STMP Program and updating the Nexus Plan and the Strategic Plan;  

 Implementing the bike rack installation project on San Pablo Avenue; 

 Initiating the real-time ride sharing pilot program with Carma in West County; 

 Exploring additional paratransit service for trips outside West County (perhaps to 
Martinez health service sites); 

 Providing grant information, support, and assistance to member agencies;  

 Revising WCCTAC personnel policies to reflect establishment of WCCTAC as a more 
separate agency from the City of San Pablo; 

 
In Fiscal Year 2010, the staffing level at WCCTAC was 5.67 full-time equivalents (FTE).  However, 
by Fiscal Year 2013, given three vacant positions, the staffing level had fallen to 2.67 FTEs and a 
contracted Interim Executive Director.  With the hiring of a new project manager (Leah 
Greenblat), WCCTAC now has 4.67 FTEs which staff believes is sufficient to meet the agency’s 
needs.   
 
Budget Background 
The attached budget is divided into four distinct funds:  
 

1) WCCTAC Operations - funded by member agency dues,  

2) TDM - funded by CMAQ, TFCA, and Measure J funds, 

3) STMP - funded by development fees, and 

4) Other Reimbursable (Special Projects) - funded by grants or other special sources. 
 
In September 2012, the Board adopted a General Fund Reserve Policy for the WCCTAC 
Operations fund to establish a “below the line” reserve of $140,000.   

 
After several years of revenues exceeding expenses, WCCTAC Operations had accumulated a 
unnecessarily large fund balance by the end of Fiscal Year 2013.  As a result, Fiscal Year 2014 
dues were set very low as a one-time measure, which reduced the fund balance to $375,592. 
 
In the current Fiscal Year 2015, dues were set as the same level as Fiscal Year 2013, which 
represented a 15% discount from the “normal” dues level.  This is expected to reduce the fund 
balance further to $309,568.  That still allows for an available fund balance of $169,568 above 
the reserve going into Fiscal Year 2016.   
 

8-2



Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Review 
Altogether, WCCTAC is estimated to spend about 2.7% less than what was budgeted for 
WCCTAC Operations in Fiscal Year 2015.  One notable area of savings was in the cost of routine 
IT services.  In Fiscal Year 2014, the City of San Pablo (WCCTAC’s host agency) raised the cost of 
that service to approximately $2,000 per month.  WCCTAC is currently spending a great deal 
less than that on its contracted IT service provider.   
 
The timing of the hiring of WCCTAC’s new project manager also resulted in a small savings.  
While some of the costs of the office move in Fiscal Year 2015 were less than expected, one 
exception was in the furniture, equipment and phones account.  In this category the agency 
spend more than the amount budgeted, although these were mainly one-time expenses.  
WCCTAC also spent more than was budgeted in the rent / building category, as the budget was 
set before the rent for the new office was known. 
 
In the TDM Fund, WCCTAC is expected to spend 7% below the budget, with lower than 
expected expenses in all categories, with the exception of the rent / building account.     
 
Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
The budget for WCCTAC Operations in Fiscal Year 2016 is 1.4% higher than the budget in Fiscal 
Year 2015.  This increase is mostly driven by payroll, which is higher, but represents WCCTAC 
finally returning to a normal staffing level.  It includes a cost-of-living adjustment of 2.5% and 
some merit increases. 
 
There are some savings in the budget for the next fiscal year, as compared with the current 
year, due to the lack of one-time expenses related to office move.  These expenses include 
furniture (work stations), IT equipment and installation, and other ancillary moving costs.  
 
To reduce net costs to the agency, staff proposes to use of some Measure J program funds in 
the 20b and 21b categories to cover a small portion of administrative costs.  This is a common 
practice with CCTA and other RTPCs, and has been discussed with CCTA staff. 
 
The budget for WCCTAC Operations in Fiscal Year 2016 is expected to reduce the cash balance 
by $54,058, bringing it down to $255,510, or $115,510 above the reserve.  It is likely that dues 
will need to return to the “normal” level in Fiscal Year 2017, since annual reductions in the cash 
balance are not permanently sustainable.     
 
In the upcoming year, WCCTAC is proposing to broaden the TDM commute incentives program 
by drawing upon unspent funds from previous years.  To help with the larger work load, 
considering the addition of contracted, part-time assistance, which is included in the TDM 
budget.  Staff is also considering the temporary use of adjacent office space within the current 
building for TDM activities, if a low enough rent can be negotiated.  A placeholder dollar 
amount for that space has been included in the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. 
 
STMP proceeds have increased in recent year and, based on discussions with local jurisdictions, 
are estimated to grow considerably in Fiscal Year 2016.  At the same time, the Nexus Study that 

8-3



provides the policy support for STMP funding is now over ten years old and will need to be 
revisited in the upcoming year.  The Strategic Plan that lists projects that are eligible for funding 
is also proposed to be revisited in Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
Fiscal Year 2016 Dues 

Member agency dues support WCCTAC Operations.  For Fiscal Year 2016, staff is recommending 
dues of $36,675 for most members, which is identical to the dues level in Fiscal Years 2013 and 
2015.  This is less than the “normal” dues of $42,772 that were in place from Fiscal Year 2008 to 
2012.   
 
As in prior years, the dues schedule for Fiscal Year 2016 includes a discount for WestCAT.  This 
discount began as a result of WestCAT paying for its own share of some San Pablo Avenue 
Smart Corridors expenses, but continued thereafter.  Given that WestCAT has already planned 
its budget for the upcoming fiscal year, staff recommends that this discount remain in place for 
Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
However, the Board should give further consideration to the appropriate level of WestCAT dues 
in the future.  Some options include:  1) making WestCAT’s dues consistent with the dues of 
other members as specified in the Joint Powers Agreement, 2) keeping the current dues level 
for WestCAT in place in perpetuity, and 3) establishing a dues level for WestCAT that is lower 
than for other members by a defined and set percentage.  
 
Attachments: 

 Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Agency Work Program 

 Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 

 Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Dues Schedule 
 

8-4



WCCTAC FISCAL YEAR 2016  
PROPOSED WORK PROGRAM 

 

WCCTAC’s activities may be grouped into the following five major areas:  1) General Operations,     

2) Transportation Demand Management (TDM), 3) Subregional Transportation Mitigation Fee 

Program (STMP), 4) Other Reimbursable Projects, and 5) Office Administration.   

 

1. General Operations (Planning and Programming)  

This program area relates to WCCTAC’s function as the Regional Transportation Planning Committee 

for West Contra Costa County under Measure J.  It also includes transportation planning efforts 

resulting from the agency’s Joint Powers Agency function, and other regional, countywide, 

subregional, and local planning and program activities.   

a.  Low-income Student Bus Pass Program Manage / Allocate 

b.  High Capacity Transit Study Manage 

c.  Grants Assistance Manage 

d.  Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) development process Manage 

e.  Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities  Allocate / Coordinate 

f.  Transportation Needs Resulting for Doctors Medical Center closure Coordinate 

g.  West County Mobility Management efforts Coordinate 

h.  Active Transportation Program (ATP) Grants Coordinate 

i.  Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Update  Coordinate 

j.  San Pablo Rumrill Complete Streets Participate on TAC 

k.  AC Transit Major Corridors Study Participate on TAC 

l.  Hercules Intermodal Transit Center Participate 

m.  I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility (ICM) project Coordinate / Participate 

n.  OBAG / PDA funding for West County Coordinate / Participate 

o.  Ferry planning and funding efforts (Richmond and Hercules) Participate 

p.  San Pablo Dam Road/I-80 Interchange Modifications   Participate 

q.  STIP Funding Cycle Participate 

r.  CCTA Express Bus Study Participate 

s.  South Richmond Connectivity Plan Participate 

t.  Goods Movement Collaborative with MTC and ACTC Participate 

u.  Safe Routes to School Program Participate 

v.  Richmond Livable Corridors Monitor 

w.  Richmond Bay Campus Monitor 

x.  Regional Express Lane Network Monitor 

y.  Rodeo / Crockett Complete Streets Planning Monitor 

z.  General plan updates and local specific plans Monitor 
8-5



As part of regular operations, WCCTAC staff will be involved in various Board and Committee 

meetings as follows.  

WCCTAC Board Meetings Manage 

WCCTAC Ad Hoc Subcommittee on the TEP Manage 

WCCTAC TAC Meetings Manage 

CCTA Paratransit Coordinating Committee Attend 

CCTA Countywide Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory Committee Participate on TAC 

CCTA Board Meetings Attend  

CCTA Planning Committee Attend  

CCTA Technical Coordinating Committee  Attend  

Countywide Safe Routes to School Task Force Participate 

CCTA Administration and Project Committee Monitor 

 

2. Transportation Demand Management (TDM).  
 

This program promotes transportation alternatives to the single occupant vehicle by encouraging 

walking, bicycling, transit, carpooling, and vanpooling, which is coordinated with the larger 

countywide 511 Contra Costa Program. The program is funded on a reimbursement basis with 

Measure J and grants from the Air District. 

a. Countywide Guaranteed Ride Home Program (GRH) Manage 

b. GRH pilot program for Contra Costa College students Manage 

c. Employer Outreach Program Manage 

d. Commute Incentive Program: 

- transit incentives 

- employer programs 

- bicycle racks and lockers 

Manage 

e. “Pass 2 Class” student transit ticket program Manage / Coordinate 

f. Update local TDM Ordinances Coordinate 

g. Coordination with Regional 511 Rideshare Coordinate 

h. Real-time Rideshare Pilot Program Coordinate 

 

 

 

 
8-6



3. Subregional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP).  

WCCTAC acts as the trustee for the developer impact fees collected by the West County cities and 

the unincorporated areas of the County.  These funds are to be used for eleven identified capital 

projects.  In the upcoming fiscal year, WCCTAC will: 

a. 1. Standardize fees 

b. Standardize and improve fee collection procedures 

c. Initiate a new nexus study and strategic plan 

d. Administer funds, oversee contractual agreements, disburse funds to projects 

e. Respond to inquiries from local agencies 

 

4. Other Reimbursable Projects.  

As a JPA, WCCTAC is able to apply for and receive various grants that facilitate various elements of 

transportation in West County.  Staff will monitor these opportunities and advance applications as 

appropriate. 

 

5.   Office Administration.   

WCCTAC’s administration is funded through member dues, some TDM funds, and other sources.   

a. Seek new accounting support  

b. Review financial services options 

c. Prepare and monitor annual work program and budget 

d. Maintain and optimize website 

 

 

 

  

8-7



8-8



WCCTAC FY 2015-2016 BUDGET

Summary of All Accounts

 Actual                  

FY 2013-14 

 Original            

FY 2014-15 

 Amended           

FY 2014-15      

(no change) 

 Estimated       

FY 2014-15 

 Proposed       

FY 2015-16       
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants 425,159          554,451          554,451          494,451          609,445          

34010 STMP Administration -                        2,400               2,400               2,400               10,000             

34111 Member Contributions 265,460          388,684          388,684          388,684          388,684          

343xx STMP Fees 181,896          253,047          253,047          633,900          1,066,650       

36102 Interest 5,092               3,800               3,800               4,350               3,700               

39906 Other Revenue 60,195             62,318             62,318             141,771          1,065,000       

TOTAL REVENUES 937,802          1,264,700       1,264,700       1,665,556       3,143,479       (a)

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 453,189          646,819          646,819          639,424          713,438          (b)

41911 Liability Insurance 11,982             7,448               7,448               8,110               8,110               

Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 465,171          654,267          654,267          647,534          721,548          

Professional Services -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

43600 Professional Services 297,454         258,915         258,915         168,839         112,094         

  Financial and IT Services 34,608             53,520             53,520             40,879             36,334             

  Audit 19,641             10,000             10,000             9,650               11,000             

  Studies/Surveys -                        3,000               3,000               -                        -                        

  Attorney Services 10,213             15,000             15,000             15,516             16,000             

  Web Site Overhaul -                        13,600             13,600             9,936               -                        

  IT Set-up (move and server) -                        17,000             17,000             13,337             -                        

  Moving Costs -                        2,000               2,000               1,658               -                        

  Accounting Services 71,401             15,000             15,000             9,876               12,000             

  Recruitment Costs 15,430             -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Contract Staffing -                        5,000               5,000               -                        36,760             

  Interim ED 52,258             -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Regional Studies / Projects -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

  Misc. STMP Projects 72,307             124,795          124,795          64,438             -                        

  Other 21,596             -                        -                        1,146               -                        

Total Professional Services 297,454          258,915          258,915          168,840          112,094          (c)

 Special Expenses (Project / Program Funding)

44000 Special Dept. Expense 45,524            221,128         221,128         230,216         1,746,774      

  TDM Incentives / Marketing 44,779            87,010            87,010            78,654            153,974         

  TDM Studies -                        -                        -                        -                        15,000             

  STMP Nexus Study, Strategic Plan -                        -                        -                        -                        125,000          

  Misc. STMP Project Funding -                        -                        -                        -                        375,000          

  Comm Based Transportation Plan -                        60,000             60,000             -                        -                        

  Student Bus Pass Program -                        62,318             62,318             69,771             65,000             

  Polling Effort - EMC Research -                        -                        -                        72,000             -                        

  High Capacity Transit Study -                        -                        -                        -                        1,000,000       

  Contingency 745                  10,000             10,000             8,502               10,000             

  Reserve -                        1,800               1,800               1,288               2,800               

Total Special Expenses 45,524            221,128          221,128          230,216          1,746,774       (d)

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training 5,238               7,000               7,000               6,234               7,339               

Total Travel/Training 5,238               7,000               7,000               6,234               7,339               

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies, Postage 8,356               8,250               8,250               8,067               10,500             

43501 TDM Printing 14,260             - - - -                        

43502 TDM Postage 28                     7,046               7,046               1,559               7,123               

43520 Printing, Copier Lease 1,352               14,180             14,180             5,497               12,690             

43530 Furniture, Equipment -                        15,500             15,500             21,365             2,000               

43900 Rent/Building 19,869             25,908             25,908             35,001             38,575             

Total Office Exp & Supplies 43,865            70,884            70,884            71,489            71,388            

TOTAL EXPENSES 857,252          1,212,194       1,212,194       1,124,312       2,659,143       

REVENUES - EXPENSES 80,550            52,506            52,506            541,244          484,336          

Beginning Fund Balance 2,169,866       

Ending Fund Balance 2,307,324       
Notes:

(a) Revenue assumptions: FY16 dues same as FY15, improving STMP receipts, additional TDM funds, grants for High Capacity Transit Study.

(b) Salary & benefit assumptions: proposed COLA increase of 2.5%, some merit-based increases.

(c) Fewer one time costs in FY16 given conclusion of office move; program/project funds now accounted for in Special Expenses.

(d) Higher budget for FY16  includes High Capacity Transit Study, broadened TDM activity, and a potential STMP Nexus Study and Strategic Plan.

See also the notes in the attached detail sheets by account.

Activity

8-9



8-10



DETAIL: WCCTAC Operations

FY 2015-16 DRAFT Budget

 Actual                  

FY 2013-14 

 Original            

FY 2014-15 

 Amended           

FY 2014-15      

(no change) 

 Estimated       

FY 2014-15 

 Proposed       

FY 2015-16       
 Note 

REVENUES

34111 Member Contributions 265,460         388,684         388,684         388,684         388,684         (a)

36102 Interest - LAIF 492                 -                      -                      450                 -                      

39906 Other - Measure J 20b & 21b 31,946            (b)

TOTAL REVENUES 265,952         388,684         388,684         389,134         420,630         

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 201,105         334,192         334,192         328,581         378,459         (c)

41911 Liability Insurance 11,982            3,724              3,724              4,055              4,055              

Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 213,087         337,916         337,916         332,636         382,514         

Professional Services

43600 Professional Services 135,545         76,560           76,560           63,823           50,250           

Financial and IT Services 15,266            26,760            26,760            19,675            17,250            (d)

Audit 19,641            10,000            10,000            9,650              11,000            

Attorney Services 10,213            15,000            15,000            15,516            16,000            

Web Site Overhaul -                      6,800              6,800              4,968              -                      

IT Set-up (move and server) -                      8,500              8,500              6,836              -                      

Moving Services -                      2,000              2,000              1,658              -                      

Accounting Sevices 36,072            7,500              7,500              5,521              6,000              

Recruitment Costs 15,430            -                      -                      -                      -                      

Interim ED 37,243            -                      -                      -                      -                      

Other 1,679              -                      -                      -                      -                      

           Total Professional Services 135,545         76,560           76,560           63,823           50,250           

Special Department Expenses

44000 Special Dept. Expense 745                11,800           11,800           9,790             11,800           

Contingency 745                 10,000            10,000            8,502              10,000            (e)

Reserve -                      1,800              1,800              1,288              1,800              (f)

Total Special Department Expenses 745                 11,800           11,800           9,790              11,800           

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training/Mileage 2,050              4,000              4,000              3,303              4,000              

Total Travel/Training/Mileage 2,050              4,000              4,000              3,303              4,000              

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies 4,352              4,500              4,500              5,541              4,000              

43501 Postage 500                 

43520 Printing, Copier Lease 1,352              5,000              5,000              1,327              3,500              (g)

43530 Furniture, Equipment, Phones 15,500            15,500            21,365            2,000              (h)

43900 Rent/Building 8,078              12,954            12,954            17,374            16,124            (i)

Total Office Expense & Supplies 13,782           37,954           37,954           45,606           26,124           

TOTAL EXPENSES 365,210         468,230         468,230         455,158         474,688         

REVENUES - EXPENSES (99,257)          (79,546)          (79,546)          (66,024)          (54,058)          

Beginning Fund Balance $309,568

Ending Fund Balance $255,510

Reserve - Undesignated $120,000

Reserve - Accumulated Vacation $20,000

Available Balance above Reserve $115,510
Notes:

(a) FY 16 dues are proposed to be the same as FY 13 and FY15.  This is a 14.25% reduction from "normal" dues.

(b) A small portion of Measure J program funds can be used to cover administative expenses.

(c) Higher budget for salaries reflects full staffing levels not present in previous two years.

Includes a proposed COLA of 2.5% based on Bay Area CPI and some merit increases.

(d) Lower budgeted amount for FY 16 vs. FY15 reflects a savings in IT services, no longer provided by City of San Pablo.

(e) Emergency Reserve per Board Reserve Policy.

(f) Reserve is for sinking fund for future computer hardware and software upgrades.

(g) Low estimate for FY15 due to a one-time copier lease credit.

(h) Furniture Expenses in FY15 were one-time, related to office move.

(i) Higher budgeted amount based on rent in new office location.  FY15 actuals include security deposit.

Activity

8-11



8-12



DETAIL: TDM

FY 2015-16 DRAFT Budget

 Actual                  

FY 2013-14 

 Original            

FY 2014-15 

 Amended           

FY 2014-15      

(no change) 

 Estimated       

FY 2014-15 

 Proposed       

FY 2015-16       
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants 425,159         494,451         494,451         494,451         609,445         (a)

36102 Interest - LAIF -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 425,159         494,451         494,451         494,451         609,455         

EXPENSES

Salary, Benefits & Insurance

41000s Salary & Benefits 252,084         310,227         310,227         308,443         324,979         (b)

41911 Liability Insurance -                      3,724              3,724              4,055              4,055              

Total Salaries, Benefits, and Insurance 252,084         313,951         313,951         312,498         329,034         

Professional Services

43600 Professional Services 68,535           57,560           57,560           39,887           61,844           

Financial and IT Services 19,342            26,760            26,760            21,205            19,084            (c)

Studies/Surveys -                      3,000              3,000              -                      -                      

Attorney Services -                      -                      -                      2,405              -                      

Web Site Overhaul -                      6,800              6,800              4,968              -                      

IT Set-up (move and server) -                      8,500              8,500              6,501              -                      

Accounting Services 35,328            7,500              7,500              4,354              6,000              

Contract Staffing -                      5,000              5,000              -                      36,760            (d)

Interim ED 15,015            -                      -                      -                      -                      

Other (1,150)             455                 

Total Professional Services 68,535           57,560           57,560           39,887           61,844           

TDM Program Work

44000 Special Department Expense 44,779           87,010           87,010           78,654           169,974         (e)

    Commute Incentives / Marketing 44,779           87,010           87,010           78,654           153,974         

    Studies 15,000           

 Reserve -                      -                      -                      -                      1,000              

Total TDM Program Work 44,779           87,010           87,010           78,654           169,974         

Travel & Training

44320 Travel/Training/Mileage/Membershp 3,187              3,000              3,000              2,931              3,339              

Total Travel/Training 3,187              3,000              3,000              2,931              3,339              

Office Expenses & Supplies

43500 Office Supplies 4,004              3,750              3,750              2,526              6,500              

43501 TDM Printing 14,260            - - - -                      

43502 TDM Postage 28                   7,046              7,046              1,559              7,123              

43520 Printing, Copier Lease -                      9,180              9,180              4,170              9,190              (f)

43900 Rent / Building 11,792            12,954            12,954            17,628            22,452            (g)

Total Office Exp & Supplies 30,083           32,930           32,930           25,883           45,265           

TOTAL EXPENSES 398,669         494,451         494,451         459,853         609,455         

REVENUES - EXPENSES 26,490           -                      -                      34,598           0

Beginning Fund Balance 0

Ending Fund Balance 0
Notes:

(a) Additional grant funds represent unspent monies from prior years carried into upcoming fiscal year.

(b) Includes a proposed COLA increase of 2.5% based on Bay Area CPI, and some merit increases.

(c) Lower budgeted amount for FY 16 vs. FY15 reflects a savings in IT services, no longer provided by City of San Pablo.

(d) Expenses in FY16 represent potential part-time, contract staffing.

(e)

(f)

(g) Higher budgeted amount for FY16 represents potential expansion of office space for contract staff (subject to negotiation with landlord).

Activity

Higher budget for FY16 (due to higher grant revenues) allows for expanded program activity.

Low estimate for FY15 due to a one-time copier lease credit.

8-13



8-14



DETAIL: STMP

FY 2015-16 DRAFT Budget

 Actual                  

FY 2013-14 

 Original            

FY 2014-15 

 Amended           

FY 2014-15      

(no change) 

 Estimated       

FY 2014-15 

 Proposed       

FY 2015-16       
 Note 

REVENUES

34310 County STMP Fees 73,172            20,000            20,000            -                      226,650         

34315 El Cerrito STMP Fees -                      7,785              7,785              -                      300,000         

34320 Hercules STMP Fees -                      80,100            80,100            80,162            300,000         

34325 Pinole STMP Fees 59,418            15,000            15,000            -                      70,000            

34330 Richmond STMP Fees 49,306            50,000            50,000            366,736         90,000            

34335 San Pablo STMP Fees -                      80,162            80,162            187,002         80,000            

36102 Interest - LAIF 4,465              3,800              3,800              3,900              3,700              

TOTAL REVENUES 186,361         256,847         256,847         637,800         1,070,350      (a)

EXPENSES

Salary & Benefits

41000s Salary & Benefits (STMP Admin) -                      2,400              2,400              2,400              10,000            (b)

Total Salaries and Benefits -                      2,400              2,400              2,400              10,000           

Funding of STMP Projects

43600 Prof. Services (Project Funding) 72,307           124,795         124,795         64,438           -                     

  Miscellaneous Projects 72,307            124,795         124,795         64,438            -                      

Total Prof. Services 72,307           124,795         124,795         64,438           -                      

44000 Special Dept. Expense (Proj. Funding) -                      -                      -                      -                      500,000         

  Nexus Study and Strategic Plan  -                      -                      -                      -                      125,000         (c)

  Miscellaneous Projects -                      -                      -                      -                      375,000         (d)

  Total Special Department Expense -                      -                      -                      -                      500,000         

TOTAL EXPENSES 72,307           127,195         127,195         66,838           510,000         

REVENUES - EXPENSES 114,054         129,652         129,652         570,962         560,350         

Beginning Fund Balance 1,882,678      

Ending Fund Balance 2,443,028      

Notes:

(a) STMP receipts are expected to show improvement.

(b) Expenses are for costs to administer the program up to 2% of project expenses incurred.

(c) Expenses are a placeholder for potential funding of STMP projects, as well as a new Nexus Study and Strategic Plan.

(d)

Activity

Expenses are a placeholder for potential funding of STMP projects.  

8-15



8-16



DETAIL: OTHER REIMBURSABLE

FY 2015-16 DRAFT Budget

 Actual                  

FY 2013-14 

 Original            

FY 2014-15 

 Amended           

FY 2014-15      

(no change) 

 Estimated       

FY 2014-15 

 Proposed       

FY 2015-16       
 Note 

REVENUES

33403 Grants -                      60,000            60,000            -                      (a)

36102 Interest - LAIF 135                 -                      -                      -                      -                        

39906 Other Revenue 60,195           62,318           62,318           141,771         1,065,000       

   Measure J - Transit Study -                      -                      -                      -                      300,000           (b)

   BART - Transit Study -                      -                      -                      -                      300,000           (b)

   CCTA - Transit Study -                      -                      -                      -                      300,000           (b)

   MTC - Transit Study -                      -                      -                      -                      100,000           (b)

   Measure J  -Student Bus Pass -                      62,318            62,318            69,771            65,000              (c)

   Measure J - EMC Research 72,000            

TOTAL REVENUES 60,329           122,318         122,318         141,771         1,065,000        

EXPENSES

Special Project Expenses

43600 Professional Services -                     -                     -                        

Regional Studies/Projects -                      -                        

Other 21,066            691                 -                        

Total Professional Services 21,066           -                      -                      691                 -                        

44000 Projects

Comm Based Trans. Plan -                      60,000            60,000            -                      -                        (a)

Student Bus Pass Program -                      62,318            62,318            69,771            65,000              (c)

   Polling Effort, EMC Research -                      -                      -                      72,000            

    High Capacity Transit Study -                      -                      -                      -                      1,000,000        (b)

Total Special Project Expenses -                      122,318         122,318         141,771         1,065,000        

TOTAL EXPENSES 21,066           122,318         122,318         142,462         1,065,000        

REVENUES - EXPENSES 39,263           -                      -                      (691)                -                        

Beginning Fund Balance (9,096)              

Ending Fund Balance (9,096)              

Notes:

(a) FY 15 revenues and expenses are for a Community Based Transportation Plan for the Rodeo / Crocket  Area.

(b) Revenues and expenses are for the High Capacity Transit Study.

(c)

Activity

These funds did not need to pass through WCCTAC.

Revenues and expenses are for those anticipated under the Student Bus Pass Program (Measure J 21b).

8-17



8-18



DRAFT 

WCCTAC Fiscal Year 2016 DUES STRUCTURE 
 
 

WCCTAC Member Agency Percent Share 
Proposed  

FY 16 Dues 

City of El Cerrito 9.1% $36,675 

City of Hercules 9.1% $36,675 

City of Pinole 9.1% $36,675 

City of Richmond 27.2% $109,844 

City of San Pablo 9.1% $36,675 

Contra Costa County 9.1% $36,675 

AC Transit 9.1% $36,675 

BART 9.1% $36,675 

WestCAT 9.1% $36,675 

  discount  ($14,560) 

WestCAT Subtotal  $22,115 

Total 100.0% $388,684 

 
 
 
 
Recent Dues History 
 
For a Regular 9.1% Share Member: 

Year Amount 

FY 08-09 $42,772 

FY 09-10 $42,772 

FY 10-11 $42,772 

FY 11-12 $42,722 

FY 12-13 $36,675 

FY 13-14 $25,482 

FY 14-15 $36,675 

 

8-19



8-20



 

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

DATE: 

 

 

May 29, 2015 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Results of Public Polling Conducted from February to April 2015 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

None.  Information Only 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

As part of the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) process, EMC Research was directed by 
CCTA to conduct polling of county residents on transportation issues in early 2014.  This 
information was presented to the WCCTAC Board in the Spring of 2014.  The Board requested 
supplemental polling of West County residents in order to obtain more statistically significant 
information about public opinions in this sub-region.   
 
EMC Research presented three survey polling options at the June 2014 WCCTAC Board meeting.  
The Board selected the most extensive option, which included both voters and non-voters, with 
a not-to-exceed budget of $72,000.  Measure J 28b (sub-regional needs) funds were used to 
pay for this effort.  A questionnaire was approved by the WCCTAC Board at the December 2014 
meeting and polling was conducted from February through April of 2015. 
 
At the May, 2015 Board meeting, EMC Research will provide a high-level overview of the polling 
results and will answer Board member questions.  The full data set, additional charts and 
graphs, and additional cross tabulation information can be made available upon request. 
 

 

9-1



9-2



 

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

DATE: 

 

 

May, 29, 2015 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE:           Status Report on I-80/Central Avenue and I-80/San Pablo Dam Road 
Interchange Improvement Projects  

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

Information Only 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

At the April Board meeting, staff was asked to bring back information on two specific 
freeway interchange projects: the I-80/Central Avenue Interchange Improvement project 
and the I-80/San Pablo Dam Road Interchange Improvement project.  These are both 
Measure J-funded projects, overseen by CCTA staff.   
 
Measure J Project Updates: 
The I-80/Central Avenue Interchange improvement project consists of two distinct 
phases.  The first will redirect Central Avenue westbound traffic, entering westbound I-80 
at Central, to the adjacent I-580 interchange.  The second will improve the spacing of 
traffic signals along Central Avenue by connecting Pierce Street to San Mateo Street via a 
new roadway and reconfiguring the intersections at Pierce Street and San Mateo Street.  
The first phase is in the final design stage.  Ivan Ramirez, Engineering Manager with CCTA, 
will present an update on the project including: costs, funding status, and the project 
schedule. 
 
The I-80/San Pablo Dam Road Interchange project will also be completed in two phases.  
Phase 1 will replace the Riverside Avenue Pedestrian Overcrossing, relocate the El Portal 
Drive westbound on-ramp to the north, and extend the I-80 westbound auxiliary lane 
between El Portal Drive and San Pablo Dam Road interchanges.  Phase 2 will replace the 
San Pablo Dam Road interchange.  Phase 1 is now ready to advertise for construction.  
Hisham Noeimi, Engineering Manager with CCTA, will present an update on the project 
including: costs, funding status, and the project schedule. 
 
Next Steps:   
The WCCTAC Board will review potential Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) projects 
in June and July.  These two interchange projects will be included in the 2017 Regional 
Transportation Plan Update (led by MTC) and can be included in the TEP. 

10-1



10-2



 

 

 
 
May 6, 2015 
 
 
Mr. Randell Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek CA 94597 
 
RE:  WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  
 
Dear Randy: 
 
The WCCTAC Board, at its April 24, 2015 meeting, took the following actions that may be 
of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Received a presentation from Ross Chittenden about efforts to develop a new 
transportation expenditure plan (TEP) for possible inclusion in a November 2016 
ballot measure.   

 
2. Approved the 2016 and 2017 allocation of funds for Program 21b – Student Bus 

Pass Program.   
 

3. Received a presentation from BART staff on the planned modernization of the 
Del Norte BART Station in El Cerrito. 

 
4. Briefed the Board on efforts for 2015 Bike to Work Day set for May 14.  

 
 
Sincerely, 

       
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 
 
 
cc:  Danice Rosenbohm, CCTA; Lynn Overcashier, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps, Robert 
Sarmiento, TRANSPLAN; Andy Dillard, SWAT 

 

 

 
El Cerrito 

 

 

 

 

 

Hercules 

 

 

 

 

 

Pinole 

 

 

 

 

 

Richmond 

 

 

 

 

 

San Pablo 

 

 

 

 

 

Contra Costa 

County 

 

 

 

 

AC Transit 

 

 

 

 

 

BART 

 

 

 

 

 

WestCAT 

11a-1



11a-2



 

  

 
 

 
ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.  
 
 
ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACCMA: Alameda Country Congestion Management Agency (now the ACTC) 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission (formerly ACCMA) 
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP:  Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or HITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System  
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 
NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 

11b-1



WCCTAC Acronyms 

May 2015 

Page 2 

 

                           

           
2 

O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PBTF- Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities  
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STARS: Sustainable Transportation Analysis & Rating System 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
 

11b-2


	wa 05-29-15
	Board Action Minutes 04-24-15 draftjp
	ED Report-May 2015
	7700 Ops
	7720 TDM
	Copy of 7730 STMP
	7740 Spec Projs
	Staff Report FY 16 20b Claims
	20b Claim Forms fr Operators -rightside up
	Staff Report - FY 16 Work Program, Budget, Dues - 2
	2016 DRAFT Final Work Program
	Draft Budget - Summary
	Draft Budget - WCCTAC Operations
	Draft Budget - TDM
	Draft Budget - STMP
	Draft Budget - Other
	FY 15-16 Dues 2
	Staff Report - EMC Polling Results
	Staff Report - Status Report Central Ave and SPDR 2
	ws 04-24-15 Final
	Acronym List May 2015



